

DRAFT

CHAPTER IV
COVERED SERVICES AND LIMITATIONS

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION	1
Frequently Used Acronyms	1
Legal Basis	2
Role of Medicaid as Payer	2
Cardinal Care Managed Care Program	3
Resident Rights	5
https://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/ssact/title19/1919.htm	6
Medicare / Medicaid Certification	6
CONTROLS AND ADMISSION PROCESS	6
Screening	7 6
Preadmission Screening and Resident Review (PASRR) for Individuals with Mental Illness, Intellectual Disability and Related Conditions	8
Admission to a Nursing Facility (NF)	9
COVERED SERVICES AND LIMITATIONS	10
Services	10
Specialized Care Services (SCS) – NF Provider Requirements	10
Specialized Care Services (SCS) – Criteria for Adults	11
Specialized Care Services (SCS) – Criteria for Pediatric and Adolescents	12
Ventilators and Associated Supplies	13
Therapies Provided in Nursing Facilities (NFs)	14
Hospice	15 14
Durable Medical Equipment (DME) and Supplies	16 15
Therapeutic Leave	16 15
Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI)	16
Pharmacy Services	19 18
Other Compensable Services	19
LONG-STAY HOSPITALS (LSH)	19
DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS	19
Change-of-Resident Status	20 19
INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY	20
Individual's Financial Responsibility	20
Definition of Patient Pay Adjustment	21 20

Patient Pay Adjustment Limitations	23 ²⁴
Services Not Permitted	24 ²²
PATIENT PAY ADJUSTMENT AUTHORIZATION PROCESS	25 ²²
Adjustments Less Than \$500	26 ²²
Adjustments \$500 or Greater	27 ²³
Non-Medicaid Enrolled Providers	27 ²⁴
LIMITS / NON-COMPENSABLE SERVICES	31 ²⁶
“Sitters” in Nursing Facilities	31 ²⁶
Private Duty Nurses	31 ²⁶
Hospitalized Residents	32 ²⁷
Authorization of Services	33 ²⁸

INTRODUCTION

The Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) is the single state agency responsible for the administration of Virginia's Medicaid Program. Certain individuals who qualify for Virginia Medicaid may also qualify for Long-Term Services and Supports (LTSS). ~~Of the programs available through Virginia Medicaid are a group of services referred to as Long-Term Services and Supports (LTSS). LTSS refers to a group of services designed to support individuals with functional limitations so they can maintain a high quality of life and maximize their independence. Medicaid members are able to choose the setting in which they receive these services. These services support individuals in a variety of settings including including their home, and community through (for example, the Commonwealth Coordinated Care Plus (CCC Plus) Waiver or the Program for All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE) program,) and or an institutional setting, such as a nursing facility.~~ ies. The purpose of Medicaid funded LTSS is to provide medically necessary services and assist the individual to be as independent for as long as possible in the individual's choice of setting (home and community-based or nursing facility).

Frequently Used Acronyms

~~Emergency regulations (12 VAC 30-60-300 et seq.) became effective on September 1, 2016 related to the process for screening individuals for LTSS. These regulations defined terms, specified timeframes and reporting requirements for entities conducting screenings for LTSS. See the link for access to the emergency regulation:~~

The following acronyms are used throughout ~~the emergency regulation and as well as~~ this manual chapter.

CBT – Community-Based Teams

CCC Plus – Commonwealth Coordinated Care Plus ~~(CCC Plus)~~

DBHDS – Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services

DMAS – Department of Medical Assistance Services

~~DBHDS – Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services~~

~~LDHD – Local Health Department~~ Department of Health

LDSS – Local ~~d~~Department of Social Services

LOC – Level of eCare

LSH – Long-sStay hHospital

LTSS – Long-term sServices and sSupports

MCO – Managed Care Organization

NF – Nursing facility

PACE – Program for the All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly

POC – Plan of eCare

SCS – Specialized Care Services

SE – Screening entity (refers to CBT, LDSS, LDHLHD, LDSS, or a DMAS contractor)

VDH – Virginia Department of Health

Legal Basis

~~The Code of Virginia §32.1-330 requires that all individuals who will be eligible for community or institutional long-term care services as defined in the state plan for medical assistance shall be evaluated to determine their need for nursing facility (NF) services. states that every individual who applies for or requests community or institutional long-term services and supports as defined in the state plan for medical assistance services; may choose to receive services in a community or institutional setting; shall be afforded the opportunity to choose the setting and provider of long-term services and supports; and shall be screened prior to admission to such community or institutional long-term services and supports to determine the need for long-term services and supports, including community waivers, PACE program, or nursing facility services as defined in the state plan for medical assistance services. DMAS shall require an LTSS “preadmission screening” referred to hereafter as “LTSS screening” of all individuals who choose LTSS in the NF, at the time of application to a certified NF (skilled and regular) are eligible for Medicaid or will become eligible within six months. This shall be referred to as an LTSS screening.~~

~~The Virginia Administrative Code (12VAC30-60-303) defines the criteria for which an individual needs the level of care (LOC) for LTSS. Prior to admission to a NF, For NF admissions, the NF shall determine if NF placement will meet the individual’s needs by applying existing criteria for NFs and review of the completed LTSS screening forms to ensure that appropriate NF admission criteria have been documented (12VAC30-60-308). The Virginia Administrative Code requires that NF use the Minimum Data Set (MDS), a standardized federal uniform comprehensive assessment form, to review and document on an ongoing basis that the individual continues to meet NF criteria. The Virginia Administrative Code (12VAC30-60-303) defines the criteria for determining if an individual needs the level of care (LOC) for LTSS. Prior to admission for LTSS from an external source, the NF shall determine if NF placement will meet the individual’s needs by applying existing criteria for NFs and shall review the completed LTSS screening forms to ensure that appropriate LTSS NF admission criteria has been documented (12VAC30-60-308), unless the individual meets any of the special circumstances set out in 12VAC30-60-302 (E). For individuals transitioning from skilled to LTSS in the NF, the NF shall conduct the LTSS sScreening prior to or within 3 business days of initiation of LTSS to receive reimbursement from the date of initiation. The Virginia Administrative Code requires that the NF use the Minimum Data Set (MDS), a standardized federal uniform comprehensive assessment, to review and document on an ongoing basis that the individual continues to meet NF criteria.~~

Role of Medicaid as Payer

The Virginia Department of Health (VDH) licenses nursing facilities (NFs) and certified NFs for Medicare, Medicaid, Medicare/Medicaid (DUAL) payments. Information about the VDH Office of Licensure and Certification is located at:

<http://www.vdh.virginia.gov/OLC/>

~~Medicaid adopts the federal Resident Assessment Instrument (RAI) process required for Medicare reimbursement for use in Virginia's certification of Medicaid beds and reimbursement for services to individuals receiving LTSS residing in those beds.~~ DMAS serves as ~~the payer~~ the payer for services to individuals qualifying for Medicaid funded LTSS in NFs.

There are components that a NF must consider to achieve allowable Medicaid reimbursement:

- Provider Participation Requirements - The NF must meet provider participation requirements for Virginia's Medicaid Program. Chapter II explains the requirements and process for enrollment as a provider of Medicaid services.
- Member Eligibility - Each individual must meet member eligibility requirements that are defined in Chapter III of this provider manual. Member eligibility is determined by the local department of social services (LDSS) in the jurisdiction where the individual resides.
- Covered Services and Limitations - Each individual and provider must meet the criteria defined for each program. This chapter, Chapter IV, includes NF services that are covered by Medicaid and limitations to those services.
- Billing – Each service is reimbursed through the submission of a claim by the service provider. Chapter V of this manual describes the billing instructions for achieving Medicaid reimbursement.
- Utilization Review and Control – DMAS must assure that all federal and state requirements are met; this is referred to as the standards established and methods used to assure high quality care. Chapter VI of this manual explains the utilization and control process to assure proper reimbursement for NF services.

~~Commonwealth Coordinated Care (CGG Plus) Cardinal Care~~ Managed Care Program

The ~~Commonwealth Coordinated Care Plus (CGG Plus) Cardinal Care~~ managed care program is a comprehensive initiative to coordinate care for individuals who are currently receiving services through ~~both Medicare and~~ Medicaid and meet certain eligibility

requirements. The program is designed to be Virginia's single program to coordinate delivery of primary, preventive, acute, behavioral, and ~~long-term care services~~ LTSS and supports focused on the individual's needs and preferences. ~~The CCC Cardinal Care managed care organizations (MCOs) may require prior authorization for NF placement and services; all level of care entries, authorizations and reimbursement for CCC managed care members are performed by the CCC MCO.~~ Additional information on the CCC Cardinal Care managed care ~~P~~program can be accessed at: ~~Cardinal Care Managed Care~~
~~https://www.dmas.virginia.gov/for-members/managed-care-programs/ccc-plus/~~
~~Cardinal Care Managed Care | DMAS – Department of Medical Assistance Services~~
~~(virginia.gov)~~

~~The CCC Plus Managed Care Program is a new managed long-term services and supports (LTSS) program.~~ This mandatory Medicaid managed care program ~~will~~ serves individuals with disabilities and complex care needs, in addition to those individuals with less complex care needs.

Target Population –

1. Individuals who receive full Medicaid benefits, including those eligible through Medicaid Expansion.
- ~~4-2.~~ Individuals who receive Medicare benefits and full Medicaid benefits (dual eligible), including members enrolled in Commonwealth Coordinated Care Plus (CCC Plus). CCC members will transition as of January 1, 2018.
3. Individuals who receive Medicaid long-term services and supports (LTSS) LTSS in a facility or the CCC Plus Waiver, except Alzheimer's Assisted Living waiver. Individuals enrolled in the Community Living, the Family and Individual Support, and Building Independence waivers, known as the Developmental Disabilities (DD) waivers, will be enrolled for their non-waiver services only. At this time, their DD waiver services will continue to be covered through Medicaid fee-for-service.
- ~~2.~~
- ~~3. These members will transition as of January 1, 2018.~~

This section relates only to individuals enrolled in the CCC Plus Cardinal Care Managed Care Program:

CCC Plus ~~The Cardinal Care~~ Managed Care Program does not change the initial screening process for individuals seeking LTSS: to include ing NF services. Upon completion of the LTSS screening process, the screening team will discuss with the individual the choice between institutional and community-based services when the screening documents the member meets all LTSS criteria. If an individual selects institutional care, admission into a NF, the screening team will forward all screening documentation to the CCC Plus Cardinal Care Managed Care Program

~~MCO care coordinator~~ for follow-up with the individual to offer choice of NF service providers. Upon selection of and admission to a NF, the NF must send the completed DMAS-80 to the MCO notifying them of the admission date and level of care. The ~~CGG Plus Managed Care Program~~ MCO care coordinator will enroll enter the individual into the appropriate level of care and admission into the DMAS portal to authorize NF services and payment. The MCO must also send the DMAS-225 to the LDSS to inform them that the member has been approved for LTSS and is receiving care in a NF. The LDSS will then review the member's eligibility under LTSS rules and, where appropriate, determine the member's patient pay amount. The LDSS will send the NF a DMAS-225 when the patient pay has been calculated and the amount will be available in the Virginia Medicaid Web Portal.

The Virginia Medicaid Web Portal in the Medicaid Enterprise System (MES) is the gateway for providers to transact all Medicaid and ~~FAMIS (Family Access to Medical Insurance Security (FAMIS) Plan)~~ business via one central location on the Internet. The web portal provides access to Medicaid Memos, Provider Manuals, provider search capabilities, provider enrollment applications, training and education. Providers must register through the Virginia Medicaid Web Portal in order to access and complete secured transactions such as verifying Medicaid eligibility, service limits and service authorization or by submitting a claim. The Virginia Medicaid Web Portal can be accessed at:

<https://vamedicaid.dmas.virginia.gov>

NF providers must enter NF admissions, discharges, and level of care changes directly into the LTC section of the Medicaid portal for members who are fee-for-service (FFS) Medicaid members on the date of the admission, discharge, or LOC change. Providers must ensure that a valid LTSS screening supports the admission and portal entry unless a regulatory exception applies. NF must also communicate this information with the LDSS using the DMAS-225 for FFS Medicaid members.

If unable to enter the admission, discharge, or LOC change for a FFS member, the provider must send a secure email to nfportalentries@dmas.virginia.gov with a copy of the DMAS 80 along fax a copy of the DMAS 80 to DMAS (to 804-452-5456) along with a description of the reason the entry cannot be made via direct data entry, including a screenshot of the error code received when applicable. DMAS will not enter NF admissions or changes without this information. If you are unable to send a secure email, please send a secure email request to nfportalentries@dmas.virginia.gov and we will respond with an encrypted email.

Resident- Rights

The Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Title 42, Chapter IV, Subchapter G, and Part 483, Subpart B identifies the requirements for states and long-term care facilities.

Included in these requirements are the specific rights the individual has to a dignified existence, self-determination, and communication with and access to persons and services inside and outside the facility. A NF must protect and promote the rights of each individual; some key elements are listed below:

- Exercise of rights as an individual and as a citizen or resident of the United States;
- Notice of rights and services including oral and written notice in a language that the individual understands;
- Information regarding the individual's rights to make medical care decisions, including the right to formulate advance directives;
- Notification of changes to the individual's condition or room and roommate;
- Right to be fully informed about treatment including the right to refuse treatment;
- Protection of "resident funds" and accounting for those funds;
- Right to manage personal funds;
- Deposit of personal funds in interest-bearing and non-~~interest-bearing~~interest-bearing accounts;
- Accountability of records (full accounting);
- Free choice of physician and treatment;
- Participation in planning care and treatment or changes in care and treatment;
- Transfer or discharge including movement within the NF under certain conditions (See "Limits/Non-Compensable Services" in this Chapter for notification, documentation and readmit requirements); and,
- Equal access to quality of care meaning that a NF must establish and maintain identical policies and practices regarding transfer, discharge, and the provision of services under the State Plan for Medical Assistance Services for all individuals regardless of the source of payment.

Specific details for compliance with the individual rights federal regulation can be found using the link below:

https://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/ssact/title19/1919.htm

Medicare / Medicaid Certification

NFs may be certified to admit individuals eligible for Medicare or Medicaid or both. Use the link below for guidance related to certification and the use of the Minimum Data Set (MDS) required by CMS:

<https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Quality-Initiatives-Patient-Assessment-Instruments/NursingHomeQualityInits/MDS30RAIManual.html>

CONTROLS AND ADMISSION PROCESS

Screening

The entrance to Medicaid funded long-term services and supports (LTSS) in Virginia is through the LTSS screening process. The following entities conduct screenings for individuals residing in the Commonwealth:

- Community-based teams (CBTs) composed of staff from LDSS and LHD conduct screening for adults, 18 years of age and older, who reside in the community served by the LDSS.
- LHDs conduct screenings for children up to the age of 18 years who reside in their jurisdiction.
- Hospitals, acute care rehabilitation, and rehabilitation units in acute care hospitals conduct screenings for adults and children who are inpatients of the hospital.
- NFs conduct screenings for members receiving skilled nursing facility services who may need LTSS. NFs may conduct screenings for all individuals who may need LTSS, CCC+ waiver, NF, or PACE in certain circumstances. Refer to the LTSS Screening Manual Chapter IV for specific guidelines.
- Qualified staff of a PACE program, in certain circumstances outlined in Virginia Code section 32.1-330.

~~CBTs~~ entities must complete the LTSS screening within 30 days of the request for a screening. All screening documents are automated; the screening entity enters all documentation into the DMAS Electronic Medicaid Long-Term Services and Supports Screening (eMLS) portal ~~Electronic Pre-Admission Screening (ePAS)~~ system or other DMAS approved electronic record system. Upon completion of the screening, if the individual meets the level of care (LOC) criteria for LTSS and chooses NF services, the screening entity will provide a copy of the completed screening packet, which includes the following documents:

- the original LTSS Screening—Uniform Assessment Instrument (UAI)
—the DMAS-95 Level I, (if appropriate Level II MRMI)
- a copy of the DMAS-96 formUAI
- At-Risk Documentation
- DMAS- 97- (this is the Individual Choice Form and consent)
—DMAS 96
- DMAS- 95- and- DMAS- 95- Supplement,- if needed,- FOR- ALL- NF
ADMISSIONS

However,- please- note- that -it is not the actual paper forms. —The- only- valid documentation- of- the screening- is- the- print- out- from- the- eMLS- (electronic Medicaid- LTSS- Screening)- system.

Prior to the individual's admission, the NF shall review the completed screening forms to ensure that appropriate LOC criteria have been documented (12VAC30-60-308). Refer to the Screening Provider Manual for Long-Term Services and Supports at the link below for details of the screening process and for a list of the screening forms to be sent from the screening team to the NF for use in the NF admission process.

<https://vamedicaid.dmas.virginia.gov/crms>

All questions regarding Medicaid LTSS Screening processes should be directed to the following mailbox: ScreeningAssistance@dmas.virginia.gov.

Pre-Admission Screening and Annual Resident Review (PASARR) for Individuals with Mental Illness, Intellectual Disability and Related Conditions

NFs are prohibited by federal law from admitting an individual ~~with suspected or known diagnosis of Mental Illness (MI), Intellectual Disability (ID), or a Related Condition (RC)~~ without a ~~PASARR~~. The Virginia Administrative Code 12VAC30-130-140 et seq. also requires ~~PASARR~~. For new admissions to NFs, the screening entity determines whether an individual seeking admission to a NF may have or has a diagnosis of MI/ID/RC; ~~this the~~ first step is ~~referral for a Level I identification screening~~. ~~Completion of the Level I identification screening determines whether the individual has a suspected or known diagnosis of Mental Illness (MI), Intellectual Disability (ID), or Related Condition (RC), that needs additional evaluation,~~ referred to as a ~~The~~ Level II evaluation ~~to~~ determines if NF placement is appropriate LOC and if specialized services are recommended. The screening entity refers the individual to the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services' contractor to complete a Level II evaluation. The outcome of the Level II evaluation is forwarded to the screening entity and indicates whether or not the individual has MI, ID, or an RC, and if so, the specific services that must be provided to the individual upon admission to the NF. Completion of the Level II process, ~~if indicated by the Level I,~~ is required prior to ~~the~~ NF admission, ~~when indicated by the Level I,~~ annually for individuals with identified PASRR condition, in the event of a significant change in status, or at the expiration of a time-limited stay. Title 42 Chapter IV, Subchapter G, Part 483, Sub-~~p~~Part C at the link below provides information about Medicaid ~~PASARR~~ Program:

<https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-42/chapter-IV/subchapter-G/part-483/subpart-C>

The Virginia Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (DBHDS) coordinates the Level II evaluations through its contractor. For information regarding Virginia's ~~PASARR~~ Program, obtain contact information at the link below:

<https://dbhds.virginia.gov/office-of-integrated-health/long-term-care/>

Level- of- Care- Criteria

An individual's functional capacity, medical or nursing needs, and risk for institutionalization combined ~~d~~ ~~to~~ determine when the individual requires long-term services and supports (LTSS) at the level of care (LOC) provided in a NF. Medicaid reimbursement is available to those individuals meeting the LOC criteria upon admission and continuingly thereafter while residing in a NF and who are enrolled in a Medicaid covered group that provides LTSS during that time. The criteria for LOC are defined in the Virginia Administrative Code (12VAC30-60-303) and are found at the link below:

<http://law.lis.virginia.gov/admincode/title12/agency30/chapter60/section303/>

~~Additional details on the criteria are found in the VAC and in the Pre-Admission Screening PAS Provider Medicaid Long-Term Services and Supports Screening Manual, Chapter IV:~~

~~<https://vamedicaid.dmas.virginia.gov/manuals/pre-admission-screening>
https://vamedicaid.dmas.virginia.gov/pdf_chapter/medicaid-long-term-services-and-supports-ltss-screening#gsc.tab=0~~

Admission- to- a- Nursing- Facility- (NF)

~~Prior to an individual's admission, t~~Prior to an individual's LTSS admission, t~~The NF shall review the completed screening forms to ensure that applicable NF admission criteria have been met and documented (12VAC30-60-308), unless the individual meets any of the special circumstances.- DMAS will authorize payment to the NF as of the date the individual is both: 1) eligible for full-benefit Medicaid; and 2) documented to meet the level of care (LOC) for NF placement. The NF is responsible for requesting reimbursement for services to the individual meeting both criteria listed above. See Chapter VI Nursing Facility (NF) Admission Documentation Requirements of this manual for the instructions regarding submission of the NF admission package to DMAS for fee for service members.~~

For individuals admitting for skilled nursing care and transitioning to LTSS, the NF is to conduct the LTSS screening prior to or within 3 business days of initiation of LTSS. When the screening is completed and accepted authorized no later than 3 business days of LTSS initiation, reimbursement begins on the date of transition. If the LTSS Screening is not completed prior to or within 3 business days of transition to LTSS, the NFs will not be reimbursed for NF placement or services until a LTSS Screening has been completed and accepted-authorized In eMLS (as described in the LTSS Screening Manual) and the individual is determined to meet required LOC criteria and Medicaid eligibility for LTSS.

Appropriate Bed Placement – DMAS cannot pay for care provided to an individual eligible for Medicaid when the individual is not placed in a distinct area of the NF certified to

provide Medicaid services. An individual eligible for Medicaid who meets Medicare criteria cannot be required to be placed in a Medicare-certified bed. An individual for whom Medicaid pays the co-pay must also be in a Medicaid-certified bed in order for reimbursement to be received.

Semi-private Room - The Virginia Medicaid Program will pay for semi-private or other accommodations (two or more bed accommodations) unless DMAS determines that a private room is medically necessary.

Information is also available regarding provider rate setting and DMAS' MDS Guidance Document 3.0:

<https://www.dmas.virginia.gov/for-providers/rates-and-rate-setting/nursing-facilities>

COVERED SERVICES AND LIMITATIONS

Services

The duration, scope, and quality of Nursing Facility (NF) care under the Virginia Medicaid Program must not be of any less or greater duration, scope, or quality than that provided to individuals not receiving state or federal assistance.

Specialized Care Services (SCS) — NF Provider Requirements

NF providing specialized care services (SCS) must meet the following requirements for Medicaid reimbursement:

- 1) Each NF provider of SCS must be licensed and certified for Medicare and Medicaid by the Virginia Department of Health / Office of Licensure and Certification (VDH/OLC) to provide SCS;
- 2) Each NF shall have a current signed participation agreement with DMAS as an Intermediate Care Facility (ICF) or Skilled Nursing Home (SNH) and a participation agreement with DMAS to provide NF care and agree to provide care to at least four (4) individuals who meet the specialized care criteria for children/adolescents or adults. (12VAC30-60-40.H)
- 3) If a resident is in a NF and receiving SCS, no payment of hospice services will be made to the hospice provider. The NF SCS provider is responsible for providing and billing for all services the individual receives. SCS must be preauthorized by the DMAS service authorization contractor prior to the delivery of SCS.
- 4) NFs providing SCS must be able to provide the following SCS to individuals eligible for Medicaid in need of SCS:

- a. In-person physician visits at least once (1) every seven (7) calendar days – The visit must be made by the physician, subsequent visits may alternate between physician and physician assistant or nurse practitioner);
- b. Skilled nursing services by a registered nurse (RN) available 24 hours per day;
- c. Coordinated multidisciplinary team approach to meet the needs of the resident;
- d. Infection control;
- e. For individuals under age 21 who require two (2) of three (3) rehabilitative services (physical therapy, occupational therapy, or speech-language pathology services), therapy services must be provided at a minimum of 90 minutes each day, five (5) days per week;
- f. Ancillary services related to a plan of care;
- g. Respiratory therapy services by a licensed board-certified respiratory therapist (for ventilator patients, these services must be available 24 hours per day);
- h. Psychological services by a licensed clinical psychologist, licensed clinical social worker, licensed professional counselor, or licensed clinical nurse specialist-psychiatric related to a plan of care;
- i. Necessary durable medical equipment (DME) and supplies as required by the plan of care;
- j. Nutritional elements as required;
- k. A plan to assure that specialized care individuals have the same opportunity to participate in integrated NF activities as other individuals;
- l. Nonemergency transportation;
- m. Discharge planning; and
- n. Family or caregiver training.

Specialized Care Services (SCS) – Criteria for Adults

Adults needing SCS must have long-term health conditions requiring close medical supervision, 24 hour per day licensed nursing care, and specialized services or equipment. The population to receive SCS includes adults requiring mechanical ventilation and individuals with a complex tracheostomy who require comprehensive respiratory therapy services (12VAC30-60-320).

1. The adult must require at a minimum:
 - a. Physician visits at least once per week. The initial physician visit must be made by the physician and subsequent required physician visits after the initial visit may alternate between visits by the physician and visits by a physician assistant or nurse practitioner.
 - b. Skilled nursing services 24 hours per day. A registered nurse (RN), whose sole responsibility is to the designated unit, must be assigned to the nursing unit that the resident resides.
 - c. Respiratory services provided by a licensed board-certified respiratory therapist (these services must be available 24 hours per day).
 - d. Coordinated multidisciplinary team approach to meet the individual's needs.
2. In addition, the individual must meet one (1) of the following two (2) requirements:
 - a. Require a mechanical ventilator; **or**

- b. Have a complex tracheostomy that meets **all** of the following criteria. The individual must:
 - (1) Have a tracheostomy, with the potential for weaning off of it, or documentation of attempts to wean, with subsequent inability to wean;
 - (2) Require nebulizer treatments followed by chest PT (physiotherapy) at least four (4) times per day or nebulizer treatments at least four (4) times per day, which must be provided by a licensed nurse or licensed respiratory therapist;
 - (3) Require pulse oximetry monitoring at least every shift due to demonstrated unstable oxygen saturation levels;
 - (4) Require respiratory assessment and documentation every shift by licensed respiratory therapist or trained nurse;
 - (5) Have a physician's order for oxygen therapy with documented usage;
 - (6) Require tracheostomy care at least daily;
 - (7) Have a physician's order for suctioning as needed; and
 - (8) Be deemed to be at risk of requiring subsequent mechanical ventilation.

Specialized Care Services (SCS) – Criteria for Pediatric and Adolescents

To be eligible for SCS, the child under the age of 21 must have ongoing health conditions requiring close medical supervision, 24 hours per day licensed nursing supervision, AND specialized services or equipment.

- 1) The individual must be age 21 or under (12VAC30-60-340) and be a child with at least one (1) of the following:
 - a. requiring mechanical ventilation
 - b. with communicable diseases requiring universal **OR** respiratory precautions (excluding normal childhood diseases such as chicken pox, measles, strep throat, etc.)
 - c. requiring ongoing intravenous medication or intravenous nutrition administration
 - d. requiring daily dependence on device based respiratory or nutritional support (tracheostomy, gastrostomy, etc.)
 - e. requiring comprehensive rehabilitative therapy services
 - f. with terminal illness
- 2) At a minimum, the care needed by the child must include:
 - a. Physician visits at least once per week (the initial physician visit must be made by the physician. Subsequent required physician visits after the initial visit may alternate between visits by the physician and visits by a physician assistant or nurse practitioner.)
 - b. Skilled nursing services 24 hours per day (a RN whose sole responsibility is that nursing unit) must be on the nursing unit on which the child is residing, 24 hours per day.
 - c. Coordinated multidisciplinary team approach to meet needs of the individual
 - d. The NF must coordinate with appropriate state and local agencies for the educational and habilitative needs of the child. These services must be age appropriate and appropriate to the cognitive level of the child. Services must also be individualized to meet the specific needs of the child and must be provided in

an organized and proactive manner. Services may include, but are not limited to school, active treatment for intellectual disability (ID), habilitative therapies, social skills, and leisure activities. The services must be provided for a total of two (2) hours per day, at a minimum.

- 3) In addition to item #2 above, the child must meet one of the following requirements:
- Must require two (2) out of three (3) of the following rehabilitative services: Physical Therapy, Occupational Therapy, Speech-Language pathology services; therapy must be provided at a minimum of six (6) therapy sessions (minimum of 15 minutes per session) per day, five (5) days per week; child must demonstrate progress in overall rehabilitative plan of care on a monthly basis; or
 - Must require special equipment such as mechanical ventilators, respiratory therapy equipment (that has to be supervised by licensed nurse or respiratory therapist), monitoring device (respiratory or cardiac) kinetic therapy, etc., or
 - Children that require at least one (1) of the following special services:
 - (1) Ongoing administration of intravenous medications of nutrition (i.e., TPN, antibiotic therapy, narcotic administration, etc.);
 - (2) Special infection control precautions (universal or respiratory precaution; this does not include handwashing precautions only or isolation for normal childhood diseases such as measles, chicken pox, strep throat, etc.);
 - (3) Dialysis treatment that is provided within the NF (i.e., peritoneal dialysis);
 - (4) Daily respiratory therapy treatments that must be provided by a skilled nurse or respiratory therapist;
 - (5) Extensive wound care requiring debridement, irrigation, packing, etc., more than two times a day (i.e., grade IV decubiti; large surgical wounds that cannot be closed; second or third degree burns covering more than 10% of the body);
 - (6) Ostomy care requiring services by a licensed nurse;
 - (7) Care for terminal illness.
- 4) NFs providing SCS must coordinate with appropriate state and local agencies for educational and habilitative needs for Medicaid specialized care individuals who are under the age of 21.

Ventilators and Associated Supplies

Prior approval by DMAS or MCOs will be required for all ventilators and associated supplies furnished to individuals in NFs who are not residing in a NF that has a contract with DMAS to provide SCS.

For those individuals who reside in a NF that does not have a contract with DMAS to provide SCS, DMAS will pre-authorize and make direct reimbursement to durable medical equipment (DME) vendors for the following items for NF use:

- | | |
|-------------------------------------|---|
| • Ventilator rental; | • Suction machine; |
| • Portable back-up suction machine; | • Suction catheter; |
| • Heated Cascade humidifier system; | • Sterile water; |
| • Ventilator circuits; | • Oxygen and & oxygen equipment; |
| • Tracheotomy tubes; | • Manual resuscitator; and |
| • Tracheotomy care kits; | • I.V. pole or other suitable |

- Tracheotomy dressing; support for circuits.

The reimbursement to the DME vendor for Medicaid fee for service members includes the services, consultation of, and teaching by a respiratory therapist to the NF. Medicaid reimbursement requests for ventilators for individuals expected to be placed in NF that do not have a contract with DMAS for SCS, should be sent to:

~~Department of Medical Assistance Services~~

~~DME Subject Matter Expert~~

~~Integrated Care Division~~

~~via a secure email to dme@dmass.virginia.gov. If you are unable to send a secure email, please send an email to dme@dmass.virginia.gov and we can set up a secure email for you to send information for review.~~

~~Aging Services Unit / Division of for Aging and Disability Services~~

~~Fax 804-452-5456 or 804-452-5468~~

The written request must include:

- The individual's Medicaid number;
- The present location of the individual;
- The proposed NF placement;
- The current medical status;
- A written statement from the attending physician justifying need and including the type of equipment required; and
- An itemized list of equipment required; the rental cost of machine-associated supplies and services; and the name, address, and phone number of the respiratory equipment supplier.

Therapies Provided in Nursing Facilities (NFs)

~~Outpatient physical rehabilitation therapies — For NFs that have therapist as a part of their staff, this section is not applicable.~~

~~DMAS reimburses for outpatient physical rehabilitation therapies provided to individuals residing in an NF. — Physical Therapy (PT) / Occupational Therapy (OT) / Speech-Language Pathology (SLP) — for more information, refer to the DMAS Rehabilitation Provider Manual located at: <https://vamedicaid.dmass.virginia.gov/manuals/provider-manuals-library>~~

DMAS provides direct reimbursement to enrolled rehabilitation providers for outpatient therapies rendered to individuals residing in NFs. This reimbursement shall not be provided for any sums that the rehabilitation provider collects, or is entitled to collect, from the NF or any other available source. In addition, it shall in no way diminish any obligation of the NF to provide its individuals such services, as set forth in any applicable provider

agreement. If a physician (or other licensed practitioner) order exists for therapies, therapies must be provided as ordered. Reasonable and necessary administrative costs will be considered under the cost settlement process for the NF.

~~Physical Therapy (PT)/Occupational Therapy (OT)/Speech Language Pathology (SLP)—for more information, refer to the DMAS Rehabilitation Provider Manual located at:~~

Hospice

When the individual or the individual's family or legally authorized representative elects the hospice benefit, the individual for the purposes of Medicaid is considered a hospice beneficiary. The hospice provider and NF will initiate an individual-specific contractual agreement to identify a plan of care with the services to be provided by the hospice provider and the NF for that individual. Upon enrollment of the individual into the hospice program, for FFS members, Medicaid makes no further reimbursement to the NF for that individual. Services provided by the NF as identified in the hospice/NF agreement for the individual are billed by the NF to the hospice provider; the hospice provider bills Medicaid and reimburses the NF directly for services based on the hospice/NF agreement. For members enrolled in managed care, the MCO reimburses the NF directly for hospice members

No payment for hospices services will be made to a hospice provider if the individual requesting hospice services is currently receiving services through NF specialized care services (SCS).

The NF is not required to submit a DMAS-80 form for individuals receiving hospice. For individuals enrolled in managed care, the NF should ensure that the NF submits the appropriate hospice forms and DMAS 80 to the MCO.

NOTE: For those individuals who are eligible for hospice benefits under Medicare and Medicaid, the hospice provider must bill Medicare. Unless specifically prohibited by statute, the Virginia Medicaid Program is the payer of last resort. In these instances, the routine or continuous home care charges would be billed to Medicare, and the hospice provider would file claims with Medicaid for the NF charges. For individuals who are dually eligible under Medicare and Medicaid, the hospice must bill Medicare for the hospice services, even if the individual is not in a skilled ~~bed, and~~ bed and must bill DMAS for room and board.

These processes may be different for providers who participate in the CCC Plus-Cardinal Care managed care network. Refer to your provider contract or guidance from the MCO for ~~compliance audit~~ specifications.

For more information about hospice, refer to the DMAS Hospice Provider Manual located at:

<https://vamedicaid.dmas.virginia.gov/manuals/provider-manuals-library>

Refer to the link below for more information about federal requirements related to hospice:
(https://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/ssact/title19/1905.htm)

Durable Medical Equipment (DME) and Supplies

Refer to the DMAS DME and Supplies Provider Manual located at:
<https://vamedicaid.dmas.virginia.gov/manuals/provider-manuals-library>

Therapeutic Leave

A NF bed may be reimbursed by Medicaid during therapeutic leave when the individual's plan of care (POC) provides for such leave and is so noted on the individual's record. Therapeutic leave includes visits with relatives and friends, or admission to a rehabilitation center for up to seven (7) days for an evaluation. It does not include admission to an acute care hospital. Such leave is limited to 18 days in any 12-month period (with no restriction as to the duration or time of leave, except in the case of admission to a rehabilitation center for an evaluation, which is restricted to no more than seven days per evaluation). Therapeutic leave is individual-specific and is counted from the first occurrence of overnight leave that an individual takes. From that date, an individual has 18 days of leave available for the next 365 days. Therapeutic leave days also apply to Intermediate Care Facilities for Individuals with Intellectual Disability (ICF/IID).

If an individual residing in a NF is in a SCS category and that individual wishes to use therapeutic leave described above, the individual must be discharged from NF SCS and admitted to regular NF services. Medicaid reimbursement is not allowable for the SCS rate unless the resident is physically occupying the SCS bed.

Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI)

Provider Criteria:

The provider must provide all services that are available to the general NF population in accordance with the established standards and regulations for NF Care to include programming that is individual and geared toward the needs and interests of the unit's population. The provider must meet the following specified criteria to receive the add-on reimbursement for the TBI program:

- Have a dedicated 20 bed-or-more unit that is separated by a doorway that shall be either locked or maintained with an alarm system that sounds at the unit nursing station when opened;
- Certify all beds on this dedicated unit for licensed NF Care;
- Locate at least one nursing station on the unit and that nursing station must serve the dedicated unit only;

- Provide additional professional staff to support the special needs of the TBI residents;
- Maintain a contractual agreement with a Psychiatrist and a Neuropsychologist to serve the resident population as needed;
- Provide a RN to function in a Charge Nurse capacity on the unit whose sole responsibility is for the care and oversight of the designated unit. The RN working in the Charge Nurse capacity must have sufficient experience working with the brain injury population before serving in this capacity;
- Ensure that each resident on the unit is evaluated on an annual basis by a Licensed Clinical Psychologist with expertise in Neuropsychology or by a Neurologist. If a resident is admitted and has not been evaluated by a Neuropsychologist or Neurologist in the past calendar year, an evaluation must be completed within the first 30 days of the resident's stay in the TBI program;
- Coordinate Educational Services for the resident with the appropriate public school system, if the resident has not completed all educational requirements for high school education as specified by the State Board of Education. Coordination is defined as making the necessary contacts and providing necessary information to the appropriate school division. The NF shall keep records of such coordination contacts;
- Provide all services that are available to the general NF population.

Admission Process - Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI):

An important component of utilization control in the TBI area is the monitoring of the initial admission of the resident to the NF. The success of the Medicaid Program in avoiding inappropriate placements of residents in NFs is directly related to the program's ability to ensure that residents are receiving needed care at the lowest reasonable cost. A key to DMAS' capacity to provide this control is the long-term care and supports (LTSS) Screening process. The LTSS screening process is a process designed to:

- Evaluate the medical, nursing, social, psychological, and developmental needs of each individual referred for LTSS;
- Analyze what specific services the individual needs; and
- Evaluate whether a service or a combination of existing community services is available to meet the individual's needs.

NF LTSS screening must be completed prior to an individual's admission to any Medicaid-funded Long-Term-Care Service. LTSS screening guidelines described earlier in this chapter for NFs are applicable to all residents requiring placement in a facility with a TBI Unit should such a facility be available and enrolled as a Virginia Medicaid provider.

In addition, a NF offering TBI Unit services must obtain pre-admission authorization from DMAS or its service authorization contractor prior to admitting any Medicaid individual requiring TBI Services within the NF setting. The NF must complete the DMAS Admission

Authorization – Traumatic Brain Injury Cover Sheet, including the Physician's signature certifying the need for TBI Services and the admission date. The certification must be completed by the attending Physician for the NF resident or by the Medical Director for the NF. No Physician's signature is necessary for discharge date notification. The SPEC-100 form will be the only form utilized by providers to notify DMAS of admissions, discharges, and re-admission dates.

- If a resident is transferred from NF Care to TBI Services in the same NF, the authorization request must be submitted to DMAS within 72 hours (three working days) of the transfer.
- If a resident requiring TBI Services is being re-admitted to the NF after being hospitalized, the NF may re-admit the resident as a TBI resident. The NF must assume responsibility for determining that the resident meets TBI criteria, and DMAS must be notified within 72 hours in writing of the re-admission date using **a new cover sheet that has been signed by the Physician**. If DMAS is not notified within 72 hours of re-admission, the assigned begin date will be the date that DMAS was notified. If the NF re-admits a resident as a TBI resident, and it is determined that the resident did not or does not meet criteria for TBI Services, reimbursement for TBI Services will not be made. If the resident meets NF criteria, the NF may submit a NF admission package.
- The cover sheet is to be sent to: braininjuryservices@dmass.virginia.gov

~~Department of Medical Assistance Services
600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300
Richmond, Virginia 23219~~

~~Or via fax to: (804-452-5456) All Others (804-612-0050)~~

TBI criteria can be found in Appendix B of this manual. DMAS will conduct retrospective review to determine whether TBI criteria have been met and will retract payment if the patient did not qualify for TBI services.

It is the responsibility of the NF to continue to monitor the resident's continued Medicaid eligibility. If the resident's eligibility is canceled for any reason during his/her stay, Medicaid reimbursement will be terminated effective on the date of the Medicaid eligibility termination. If Medicaid coverage is reinstated, the facility must submit a new Cover Sheet for authorization of the services prior to transferring the resident back into the TBI program.

The Virginia Administrative Code 12VAC30-90-330 provides additional reimbursement for NFs providing services to individuals with TBI.

Pharmacy Services

NFs Without Licensed In-House Pharmacies

These NFs may not include the cost of drugs as an expense item in the Medicaid cost report. Medicaid payment will be made to the pharmacy dispensing the drugs. Therefore, pharmacy charges for legend and non-legend drugs are not to be included in the NFs billing invoices. Pharmacy services for individuals in NFs are covered by DMAS of the MCOs and paid directly to the pharmacy. NFs with licensed in-house pharmacies must enroll the pharmacy as a Medicaid provider. All billings for drugs must be submitted on the pharmacy invoice. Medical supplies purchased from a pharmacy may be shown on the NF billing invoice as an ancillary charge; pharmacies cannot bill DMAS for medical supplies.

Use the link below to access provider enrollment information and the DMAS Pharmacy Provider Manual:

<https://vamedicaid.dmas.virginia.gov/manuals/provider-manuals-library->

Other- Compensable- Services

Other medical services that are necessary to the health of the individuals are covered if the services are customarily provided by NFs. This includes services provided by the NF, such as laboratory, X-ray, etc. Items or services that would not be included as inpatient hospital services are similarly excluded from NF coverage. For services requiring pre-authorization, all pre-authorization criteria must be met in order for the claim to be paid.

LONG-STAY- HOSPITALS (LSH):

The Virginia Administrative Code 12VAC30-130-80 et seq. authorizes Medicaid coverage in long-stay hospitals having provider agreements with DMAS. Stays in these LSHs shall be preauthorized by the submission of a completed assessment, a physician certification of the need for LSH placement, and any additional information that justifies intensive services. Periods of care not authorized by DMAS shall not be approved for payment.

The Long Stay hospital admission and/or discharge should be entered directly into the DMAS portal by the facility for members enrolled in FFS Medicaid.

The criteria for LSH care is provided in 12VAC30-130-100 at the link below:

<http://law.lis.virginia.gov/admincode/title12/agency30/chapter130/>

DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS

For NFs, the documentation requirements for ongoing care, periodic assessment and discharge are found in Chapter VI, Utilization Review and Control, of this manual.

Documentation requirements for LSHs are found in 12VAC30-130-110 (see link above).

Change-of-Resident Status

The authorization for Medicaid-funded LTSS shall be rescinded by community-based provider, the NF, or DMAS when the individual is determined to no longer meet the criteria for Medicaid-funded LTSS. The individual shall have the right to appeal such rescission decision. The individual shall be responsible for all expenditures made after the date of the rescission decision in the event that rescission is upheld on appeal (12VAC30-60-302). In NFs, the individual's attending physician or the Utilization Review Committee are the responsible entities for ensuring continuing oversight of the individual's LOC status. There are limits to the time frames for which Medicaid reimbursement can continue when a change in LOC is ordered or recommended. See Chapter VI for more information on required documentation after admission.

INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Individual's Financial Responsibility

~~Federal regulations require certain individuals receiving Medicaid coverage of LTSS to contribute toward the cost of their care. A Medicaid individual's financial responsibility toward his/her cost of care is identified as the their -patient pay.- The LTSS provider is responsible for collecting the patient pay from the individual and is required to apply it to the patient pay amount must be applied to the cost of LTSS. The provider must seek reimbursement from DMAS (if the member is in FFS) or the member's MCO for the remainder of the The balance of the charge for NF care, allowable rate under the payment system. after the patient pay amount is subtracted from the total charge, is the responsibility of the Virginia Medical Assistance Program up to the rate allowed under the payment system.~~

Medicaid LTSS providers cannot collect more than the approved patient pay amount Medicaid rate from a Medicaid individual. ~~When Medicaid eligibility is often effective prior to the date that the determined, it is often made retroactive to a time prior to the date that the eligibility decision was made, resulting in retroactive enrollment and/or approval for Medicaid coverage of LTSS.- Due to f~~ Federal statutory and regulatory requirements ~~mandate that the NF Medicaid enrolled providers~~ accept Medicaid reimbursement as payment in full when an individual's Medicaid eligibility begins. ~~Thus, NFs are required to refund any excess payment received from a resident or family member for Medicaid covered services provided during the a period of for which the individual is later enrolled in Medicaid time that the Medicaid eligibility was pending and the individual is determined to be eligible for Medicaid.~~

The DMAS-225 is used by LDSS offices, MCOs, and LTSS providers to exchange information about Medicaid members receiving LTSS. A DMAS-225 is sent to the LTSS provider when the LDSS has determined an individual eligible for LTSS. The form is also used by the LDSS to communicate when the individual's patient pay has been changed. The DMAS-225 does not communicate the patient pay amount, this must be retrieved from the DMAS portal. the document used by LDSS offices to identify a Medicaid member's eligibility. This DMAS-225s received or sent by the LTSS provider form must be maintained on file for all Medicaid individuals. Refer to Chapter II for information on responsible party requirements.

Definition-Determination of Patient Pay Adjustment Amount

~~Federal regulations require that the Virginia Medicaid Program's reimbursement to NFs, ICF/IID, and LSHs be reduced by the~~
Patient pay is calculated by the LDSS after the individual has been approved for and initiates LTSS and is determined in the same manner for individuals residing in NFs, ICF/IIDs, and LSHs. The determination of an individual's patient pay, including all adjustments, is the exclusive responsibility of the LDSS. Providers should not determine or estimate a member's patient pay and should not bill for the patient pay until it is visible in the portal.

An individual's patient pay is calculated by subtracting allowable deductions from their countable income. Allowable deductions include the personal needs allowance, allowances for dependent/s and/or a spouse residing in the community, home maintenance allowance (if the individual intends to return home), and medical or remedial services not covered by Medicaid. An individual's patient pay will be adjusted as their circumstances change, for example, an income increase with no similar increase in allowable deductions would result in an increase in the patient pay amount. The patient pay may not exceed the rate allowed under the payment system, and it may be \$0.

A patient pay adjustment request must always be used as the last source of payment. If the individual has other sources of possible payment (e.g., Medicare, major medical insurance, prescription insurance, dental insurance, etc.), payment must from those sources must be sought first. be requested from those other sources first. Refer to Medicaid Memo dated September 25, 2015, for information regarding patient pay amounts on claims.

Patient pay will be tracked monthly as claims are processed and will be deducted from each claim for long-term care services and supports included in the patient pay processing on a first in (date of adjudication) first out basis until fully deducted.

Providers are responsible for collecting only the amount of patient pay that is deducted from their claim. Providers can use the patient pay in the MMIS as the initial basis for

requesting payment from both FFS and MCO members but should be prepared to refund any excess amount collected to reconcile to the amount deducted from claims. This can happen when more than one provider of long-term care services and supports bills for services furnished in a month.

Patient Pay Adjustments for Health Insurance Premiums & Services Not Covered by Medicaid

An individual's patient pay may be adjusted for health insurance premiums and medical or remedial care that is not covered by Medicaid or a third party. Deductions for these reasons must meet certain criteria.

Premium payments for private or commercial health insurance, including dental insurance, must be for a plan that meets the definition of a 'health benefit plan' as defined in 14VAC5-234-30 to be deducted from patient pay. "Health benefit plan" means an accident and health insurance policy or certificate, health services plan contract, health maintenance organization subscriber contract, plan provided by a MEWA (Multiple Employer Welfare Arrangement) or plan provided by another benefit arrangement. Medicare Part A, B, and D and Medicare Advantage premiums are also allowable deductions.

Health benefit plan does include accident only, credit, or disability insurance; long-term care insurance; vision only or dental only insurance; specified disease insurance; hospital confinement and other types of indemnity coverage; limited benefit health coverage; coverage issued as a supplement to liability insurance; insurance arising out of a workers' compensation or similar law; automobile medical payment insurance; or insurance under which benefits are payable with or without regard to fault and required to be contained in any liability insurance policy or equivalent self-insurance. Membership fees for an organization that sponsors or provides health insurance are not part of the premium, are not medical expenses, and are not deducted from the patient pay.

Expenses for medical or remedial care that are not subject to payment by a third party and not covered under the State's Medicaid plan, including unpaid expenses for medical or remedial services provided prior to NF admission, may be deducted from patient pay. These expenses must be medically necessary as determined by the attending provider and prescribed or ordered by a physician, dentist, podiatrist or other practitioner with prescribing authority pursuant to Virginia law. Effective July 1, 2026, claims for incurred medical or remedial care expenses **must be submitted within 90 calendar days after the invoice date.** ~~In addition, DMAS-225 adjustments may be allowed for medically or remedially necessary services that were incurred prior to Medicaid eligibility and prior to admission to the NF. One example of an expense, for which the patient pay amount may be adjusted, is for unpaid dental expenses or costs related to hearing aids prior to NF admission.~~

Expenses for medically necessary services provided by a non-Medicaid enrolled provider after Medicaid and/or other third-party reimbursement is made may also be deducted from patient pay. However, whenever possible, the NF should ensure that a Medicaid-enrolled provider is available to provide medically necessary services not provided by the facility to Medicaid-enrolled residents.

No deductions shall be permitted for medical or remedial care expenses that were incurred as the result of imposition of a transfer of assets penalty period.

The Medicaid LTC Communication Form (DMAS-225) is initially completed when the individual is found to be eligible for LTSS. If an individual requires medical services not covered by Medicaid (e.g., dental, eye, or hearing services or transportation costs incurred to receive medical or remedial services not covered by Medicaid), the LDSS office responsible for determining financial eligibility may be requested to prepare a DMAS-225 form (for a specified period of time) that allows for funds normally available for NF care to be available to pay for the non-covered medical services. Such medical services must not be covered by Medicaid or be subject to third-party payment.

PATIENT PAY ADJUSTMENT AUTHORIZATION PROCESS

When Patient pay adjustment requests must payment for a non-covered service be submitted to the LDSS that maintains the member's Medicaid eligibility case. Requests must be submitted by is requested, the the Medicaid patient member, (his/her their authorized representative, their legal representative (such as a legal guardian or individual with power of attorney authority) agent having Power of Attorney, or the NFLTSS provider.) contacts the LDSS office and requests a patient pay adjustment. Patient pay adjustments may only be requested for apply only to individuals having with a patient pay obligation greater than \$0.

The LDSS has authority to approve patient pay adjustments for expenses that are less than \$500. Requests for expenses that are \$500 or greater must be authorized by DMAS. The LDSS will confirm that all appropriate documentation has been submitted with the adjustment request. The request is then submitted to DMAS for authorization. If approved, the LDSS will adjust the patient pay and update the provider via a DMAS-225.

Patient Pay Adjustment Limitations

A patient pay adjustment request must always be used as the last source of payment. If the individual has other sources of possible payment (e.g., Medicare, major medical insurance, prescription insurance, dental insurance, etc.), payment must be requested from those other sources first. When the NF submits a request for a patient pay adjustment, a statement must be included that it has been determined that the service is not covered under any other third-party insurance or that third-party coverage is exhausted or paid to its maximum amount.

~~Only the cost of medically necessary, individual-specific, customized, or noncovered items or services may be deducted from patient pay. This includes electric, motorized, or customized wheelchairs and other equipment not regularly supplied to individuals as part of the cost of care. Supplies, equipment, or services used in the direct care and treatment of individuals are covered services and must be provided by the NF. These include, but are not limited to, standard wheelchairs, recliners, geriatric chairs, special mattresses, humidifiers, cots, incontinent supplies, and routine podiatry care. The NF is responsible for providing these items and services to individuals; their cost cannot be deducted from patient pay. (Note: Extenuating circumstances will be considered for the provision of podiatry care when the individual has a documented systemic condition that would require the services of a podiatrist. In this case, the NF is not responsible for providing podiatry care.)~~

~~In addition, DMAS 225 adjustments may be allowed for medically or remedially necessary services that were incurred prior to Medicaid eligibility and prior to admission to the NF. One example of an expense, for which the patient pay amount may be adjusted, is for unpaid dental expenses or costs related to hearing aids prior to NF admission. The NF is responsible for monitoring proper care of the individual's medical supplies and equipment. Requests for adjustment made because an item is lost or broken by NF staff must include documentation on the individual's interdisciplinary POC regarding proper care and treatment of the item. When loss or breakage is incurred as a result of NF staff following improper practices, the NF must assume responsibility for replacement of the item. If repeated adjustments are requested for the same repairs or the repair is costly, the NF may be requested to submit its POC. In such cases, DMAS will review the request and determine whether authorization should be made.~~

Services Not Permitted

~~Types of services that CANNOT be deducted from patient pay include:~~

- ~~• Medical supplies and equipment that are part of the routine NF care and are included in the Medicaid per diem, such as: diabetic and blood or urine testing strips, bandages, and wound dressing; standard wheelchairs; air or egg crate mattresses; I.V. treatments; splints; and certain prescription drugs;~~
- ~~• Ted stockings;~~
- ~~• Acupuncture Treatment;~~
- ~~• Massage Therapy;~~
- ~~• Personal care items, such as special soaps and shampoos;~~
- ~~• Physical Therapy; Speech Therapy;~~

- Occupational Therapy; and
- ~~Transportation costs to covered Medicaid services.~~

PATIENT PAY ADJUSTMENT AUTHORIZATION PROCESS

~~All requests for adjustments must be submitted by the NF using the DMAS-225 and be mailed directly to the individual's LDSS office. Faxes are not accepted. Requests submitted by a NF, ICF/IDD or LSH must include:~~

- ~~1. A completed DMAS-225;~~
- ~~2. The individual's correct Medicaid identification number;~~
- ~~3. The current physician's order or standing order for the non-covered service (not required for replacement of hearing aid batteries or eyeglass frames or for repair of hearing aids or eyeglasses);~~
- ~~4. Service description, procedure code and medical justification for the service being requested;~~
- ~~5. Actual cost information;~~
- ~~6. Documentation that the recipient continues to need the equipment for which repair, replacement, or battery is requested; and~~
- ~~7. A statement of denial or non-coverage by other insurance. The NF must obtain verification that the requested service or item is not covered by any other source. Either an official denial from a third-party carrier or a written statement by the NF staff that the insurance company was contacted, and the item or service is, in fact, non-covered is acceptable. In either case, the statement must include identification of the third party payer(s), the policy number, and the name of the insured, the date that the third party payer was contacted, and the full name of the third-party payer contact person.~~
- ~~8. For hearing aid, wheelchair, and communication device requests, the Minimum Data Set Sheet (MDS) must also be included or alternative similar documentation if the individual resides in an ICF/IDD or LSH.~~

~~The NF is responsible for monitoring proper care of the individual's medical supplies and equipment. Requests for adjustment made because an item is lost or broken by NF staff must include documentation on the individual's interdisciplinary POC regarding proper care and treatment of the item. When loss or breakage is incurred as a result of NF staff following improper practices, the NF must assume responsibility for replacement of the item. If repeated adjustments are requested for the same repairs or the repair is costly, the NF may be requested to submit its POC. In such cases, DMAS will review the request and determine whether authorization should be made.~~

Adjustments Less Than \$500

~~The LDSS has authority to authorize requests for items and services for less than \$500. Patient pay adjustments less than \$500 will be reimbursed at 100 percent of the provider's charges regardless of the provider's Medicaid enrollment status.~~ • The individual's correct Medicaid identification number;

• The current physician's orders or standing order for the non-covered service;

• Medical justification for the service being requested;

• The service description;

• Actual cost information;

• Documentation that the individual continues to need the equipment for which a repair, replacement, or battery is requested; and

• A statement of denial or non-coverage by other insurance. The NF must obtain verification that the requested service or item is not covered by any other source. Either an official denial from a third party carrier or a written statement by the NF staff that the insurance company was contacted, and the item or service is, in fact, non-covered is acceptable. In either case, the statement must include identification of the third party payer(s), the policy number, and the name of the insured, the date that the third party payer was contacted, and the full name of the third party payer contact person.

Examples of requests generally less than \$500 include the following:

~~• Routine dental care, necessary dentures, and denture repair for individuals 21 years of age and older;~~

Transportation costs incurred to receive medical/remedial services not covered by Medicaid. All non-emergency transportation must be preauthorized by the appropriate Medicaid transportation broker.

~~• Routine eye exams, eyeglasses, and eyeglass repair;~~

~~• Hearing aids (when medically necessary), hearing aid batteries, and hearing aid repair;~~

~~• Batteries for power wheelchairs or other power mobility items owned by the individual, not to exceed four batteries in a 12-month period;~~

~~• Chiropractor Services, except for Medicare individuals (Medicare covers Chiropractor Services, and Medicaid covers the Medicare deductible and co-insurance amounts);~~

~~• Dipyridamole (Persantine) and other prescription medications not covered by Medicaid but ordered by the individual's physician; and~~

~~• Transportation costs incurred to receive medical/remedial services not covered by Medicaid. All non-emergency transportation must be preauthorized by the appropriate Medicaid transportation broker.~~

~~Adjustments \$500 or Greater~~

~~For requests of \$500 or greater, the LDSS worker coordinates with DMAS to secure authorization for the items or services. The request submitted by the NF to the LDSS office for the above items or services must include the following information:~~

- ~~• The individual's correct Medicaid identification number;~~
- ~~• The current physician's orders or standing order for the non-covered service;~~
- ~~• Medical justification for the service being requested;~~
- ~~• The service description;~~
- ~~• Actual cost information;~~
- ~~• Documentation that the individual continues to need the equipment for which a repair, replacement, or battery is requested; and~~
- ~~• A statement of denial or non-coverage by other insurance. The NF must obtain verification that the requested service or item is not covered by any other source. Either an official denial from a third party carrier or a written statement by the NF staff that the insurance company was contacted, and the item or service is, in fact, non-covered is acceptable. In either case, the statement must include identification of the third party payer(s), the policy number, and the name of the insured, the date that the third party payer was contacted, and the full name of the third party payer contact person.~~

~~Incomplete requests will be returned by the LDSS to the NF without authorization.~~
~~DMAS-225~~

Non-Medicaid Enrolled Providers

~~Because many of the services received by individuals residing in an NF are from providers not enrolled with Virginia Medicaid, individuals could be balance-billed the difference between what DMAS reimburses and the provider's charges. In the case of Medicaid participating providers, they will be required to accept Medicaid's reimbursement as payment in full and cannot bill the individual. The NF should inform individuals of this requirement when medical or remedial services are medically necessary and, whenever possible, a Medicaid-enrolled provider should be utilized. Once again, this change in reimbursement only applies for services that require approval from DMAS.~~

~~Requests for adjustments to patient pay for services or expenses, which exceed \$500 must be submitted by the LDSS worker to DMAS. The LDSS worker sends the request and documentation from the NF, along with the patient income and patient pay information, to DMAS for authorization. Faxes are not accepted. The request submitted to DMAS must include:~~

- ~~• The current or most recent patient pay information (DMAS-225);~~
- ~~• The individual's correct Medicaid identification number;~~
- ~~• The current physician's orders (may be a standing order) for a noncovered service (the orders must be signed);~~
- ~~• The written medical justification for the service being requested (see below for specific requirements);~~
- ~~• The service description;~~
- ~~• The provider's usual and customary charges;~~
- ~~• The Minimum Data Sheet (MDS) (for hearing aid, wheelchair, and communication device requests only);~~
- ~~• A statement of denial or non-coverage by other insurance. It is the NF's responsibility to obtain verification that the requested service or item is not covered by any other source. Either an official denial from a third party carrier or a written statement by the NF staff that the insurance company was contacted, and the item or service is in fact non-covered, is acceptable. In either case, the statement must include identification of the third party payer(s), the policy number, and the name of the insured, the date that the third party payer was contacted, and the full name of the third party payer contact person.~~

~~NOTE: The maximum amount of reimbursement for non-covered medical or remedial goods and services for individuals residing in a NF shall not exceed the higher of the Medicaid or Medicare rate for such goods or services.~~

Medical documentation provides a visual image of the individual's needs. Documentation for medical justification must include the following, as applicable:

- ~~•~~
- ~~•~~
- ~~•~~ • The physician's prescription/physician order orders;
- ~~•~~
- ~~•~~
- ~~•~~ • The diagnosis and medical findings that relate to the reason for the request;
- ~~•~~
- ~~•~~

- Identification of the individual's functional limitation;
-
-
- Identification of the quantity needed, frequency of use, estimated length of use; and
-
-
- Identification of how the service will be used in the individual's environment.

For wheelchair and other assistive mobility item requests, medical documentation must describe mobility impairments, postural impairments, cognitive ability, and how the needs were previously met. Requested wheelchair components must be matched to the individual's functional limitations. In addition, wheelchair requests must include a recent evaluation (within the last three months) of the chair by a Physical Therapist or Occupational Therapist.

For communication device requests, medical documentation must also describe the speech limitation; the diagnosis related to the speech limitation and prognosis for improvement; speech therapy interventions; how the communication needs are currently being met; the resident's ability and motivation to use the equipment; and why the particular device was selected. In addition, requests for communication devices must include an evaluation by a Speech Language Pathologist, as well as how training on the use of the device will be provided.

For hearing aids, medical documentation must include a written hearing evaluation and interpretation (i.e., findings and recommendations).

For eyeglasses, medical documentation must include an ophthalmologic or optometric written evaluation. In addition, if the individual has cataracts or has had cataract surgery, this must be identified.

For drugs and biologicals, medical documentation must identify the correct National Drug Code (NDC) and the condition for which the product is being used.

Requests related to the replacement of items lost or broken by NF staff must include documentation on the individual's interdisciplinary POC regarding proper care and treatment of the item. The NF is responsible for monitoring proper care of the individual's medical supplies and equipment. When loss or breakage is incurred as a result of NF staff following improper practices, the NF must assume responsibility for replacement of the item. If repeated adjustments are requested for the same repairs or the repair is costly, the NF may be requested to submit its POC. In such cases, DMAS will review the request and determine whether authorization should be made.

Incomplete requests will be returned by the LDSS to the NF without authorization.

Patient pay adjustments for allowable medical and remedial expenses that are less than \$500 will be approved at 100 percent of the provider's charges regardless of the provider's Medicaid enrollment status.

Patient pay adjustments for allowable medical and remedial expenses that are \$500 or greater will be approved at the lesser of:

- The Medicaid rate for the same items or services, or,
- If there is no Medicaid rate, 80% of the Medicare rate for the same items or services; or
- The provider's usual and customary charge; or
- The provider's billed amount.

~~For wheelchair and other assistive mobility item requests, medical documentation must describe mobility impairments, postural impairments, cognitive ability, and how the needs were previously met. Requested wheelchair components must be matched to the individual's functional limitations. In addition, wheelchair requests must include a recent evaluation (within the last three months) of the chair by a Physical Therapist or Occupational Therapist.~~

~~For communication device requests, medical documentation must also describe the speech limitation; the diagnosis related to the speech limitation and prognosis for improvement; speech therapy interventions; how the communication needs are currently being met; the resident's ability and motivation to use the equipment; and why the particular device was selected. In addition, requests for communication devices must include an evaluation by a Speech Language Pathologist, as well as how training on the use of the device will be provided.~~

~~For hearing aids, medical documentation must include a written hearing evaluation and interpretation (i.e., findings and recommendations).~~

~~For eyeglasses, medical documentation must include an ophthalmologic or optometric written evaluation. In addition, if the individual has cataracts or has had cataract surgery, this must be identified.~~

~~For drugs and biologicals, medical documentation must identify the correct National Drug Code (NDC) and the condition for which the product is being used.~~

TELEPHONIC PRE-AUTHORIZATION IN EMERGENCIES

~~DMAS will provide telephonic pre-authorization for medical services that are of an emergency nature (e.g., a dental abscess or a fractured tooth). Information regarding the emergency should be provided to DMAS from the individual's representative or provider. Emergency telephonic authorization should be directed to the DMAS Division of Program~~

~~Operations (OPS) at the Payment Processing Unit at 804-692-3250. DMAS Program OPS will send a written response to the requestor pre-authorizing the patient pay adjustment for the emergency medical condition. The telephonic pre-authorization does not bypass the normal procedures for the DMAS-225 adjustment request, nor does it supersede the requirements of the LDSS office or DMAS. Following the telephonic pre-authorization, a copy of DMAS' written response must be attached to a completed DMAS-225 adjustment package that must be sent to the LDSS office so that final authorization can be made by DMAS.~~

LIMITS / NON-COMPENSABLE SERVICES

"Sitters" in Nursing Facilities

"Sitter" or Companion Service provided to Medicaid individuals in NFs is not a medical service nor a Medicaid-covered service. Another person or organization may purchase this service on behalf of the resident. This is allowable and not countable as income available to the individual if:

- The service provided by the "sitter" is not part of the NF's usual service;
- The "sitter" is not employed to provide a service that should be part of the nursing care rendered by the NF;
- Payment is made directly to the provider of the service and not to the Medicaid resident or to the NF; and
- The NF keeps a record that includes the sitter's name, the resident's name, the services being provided, and the party responsible for reimbursing the individual for these services.

~~The NF maintains on file a statement as to the "sitter" payment being made, its amount, which is making it, and for what service or services.~~

Otherwise, any money received by the individual or paid to the NF on the individual's behalf must be considered as income and could require an adjustment in the patient pay as recorded on the DMAS-225.

Private Duty Nurses

~~It should be noted that the services of a Private Duty Nurse or Private Duty Attendant are neither covered nor allowed. Private Duty Nurses, Private Duty Attendants, Registered Nurses, Licensed Practical Nurses (LPNs), or other trained attendants, whose services are restricted to a particular individual by arrangement between the individual or representative and the Private Duty Nurse or Attendant, are not covered or allowed. The NF is required, and the payment structure is computed, to cover the nursing care needs of the individual.~~

Services provided by a Private Duty Nurse, Private Duty Attendant, Registered Nurse, Licensed Practical Nurse (LPN), or other trained attendant who is privately arranged to

serve a specific individual are not covered or reimbursable. The Nursing Facility (NF) is required to meet the individual's nursing care needs, and its payment structure is designed to include coverage of those services.

Hospitalized Residents

Medicaid does not pay any NF during the time that an individual is admitted and is an inpatient in an acute care hospital. All individuals and their representatives must be informed prior to the transfer that the individual has the right to be re-admitted at the time of the next available vacancy following the individual's discharge from the hospital. This information must be read and signed by the individual or his/her representative. Families may elect to pay to reserve the NF bed while the individual is hospitalized, but the NF cannot require that the bed be paid in order for the individual to be re-admitted as described above.

Refer to 42 CFR § 483.125(b)(3) for the notification and documentation requirements for admission, transfer and discharge rights. Transfer and discharge includes movement of a resident to a bed outside of the certified facility whether that bed is in the same physical plant or not. Transfer and discharge does not refer to movement of a resident to a bed within the same certified facility. A NF must establish and follow a written policy under which an individual is transferred or discharged and readmitted to the NF. The individual must be re-admitted to the NF immediately upon the first availability of a bed in a semi-private room if the individual 1) requires the services provided by the NF, and 2) is eligible for Medicaid NF services.

A NF may not refuse to readmit an individual whose hospitalization or therapeutic leave exceeds the bed-hold period under the State Plan for the following reason:

- The individual (at the time of re-admission) has an outstanding payment to the NF for which he/she is responsible in accordance with Medicaid regulations and the NF has not complied with the required 30-day discharge notification requirements. Discharge notification requirements include providing individuals appropriate appeal rights as described in the NF Provider this Manual.

The NF is required to conform to the following in order to document its compliance with this requirement:

- Post in a conspicuous place accessible to individuals and families, a notice that individuals must be given an opportunity to be re-admitted to the facility at the time of the next available vacancy;
- Include in the individual's record a statement signed by the individual or his/her representative that he/she has been fully informed of his/her right to be re-admitted and the reasons for failure to afford him/her this right as set forth in this section; and

- Document for each individual discharged the disposition of each individual and the follow-up to ensure re-admission as required. This documentation must be on file at the NF and be made available to DMAS staff on demand. At a minimum, the documentation must include the following:
 - The date of admission to a hospital;
 - The date of discharge from a hospital;
 - The discharge destination;
 - If the discharge destination is different from the pre-admission location, and the reason the individual was not re-admitted when discharged from the hospital;
 - If the individual was placed in another NF or alternate setting following discharge from the hospital, indicate: (1) the dates of follow-up contact to ensure that the individual is offered the next available vacancy, and (2) the date the individual was re-admitted. The offer of the next available vacancy must be made in writing and signed by the individual or his/her representative; and
 - If the individual is not re-admitted at the time of the next vacancy, fully document the reason. If the individual is not re-admitted for a reason other than individual refusal, the NF must notify the individual or his/her representative in writing. The required Bed Hold notice which is required to be posted in the facility is available on the VDH website.
 - ~~○ to Medicaid-Eligible Individuals and an example of a compliance form can be found at:~~

When an individual, who has been discharged from the NF, or a relative is contacted by the NF to be offered a vacancy, the offer made by telephone must be followed up with a letter documenting the acceptance or rejection of the offered vacancy. The NF may proceed to fill the vacancy if the individual or his/her relative has verbally refused the vacancy without waiting for the written response from the individual or relative. The purpose of the written follow-up is the NF's protection against accusation that it has not clearly informed the resident or his/her relative of the availability of a vacancy.

~~Any NF that routinely holds beds for a minimum of 12 days for individuals who are discharged to hospitals may be excused from the documentation requirements for hospitalized recipients. It must, however, submit a letter to DMAS indicating that the facility will reserve the individual's bed whether or not anyone pays for the bed. After the facility letter has been received, a specific waiver of the tracking responsibility will be issued.~~

Authorization of Services

The receipt of an authorization from DMAS for services that require authorization does not guarantee reimbursement. DMAS reimbursement is contingent upon the continued Medicaid eligibility of the individual and is subject to all DMAS Utilization Review (UR) activities.

DRAFT